
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of Caribou will hold a City Council Meeting on 
Monday, July 26, 2021, in the Council Chambers located at 25 High Street, 6:00 pm. THE 
MEETING WILL BE BROADCAST ON CABLE CHANNEL 1301 AND THE CITY’S YOUTUBE CHANNEL. 

1. Roll Call 
2. Invocation/Inspirational Thought – Sid Kear of Living Water Apostolic Church of Caribou 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Public Forum (PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK PRIOR TO 4:30PM ON THE MEETING DATE WILL 

BE SHARED WITH THE COUNCIL DURING PUBLIC FORUM. Email dbrissette@cariboumaine.org) 
5. Minutes –  

a. July 7, 2021 City Council Personnel Meeting 
b. July 12, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 
c. July 20, 2021 City Council Personnel Meeting 
d. July 21, 2021 City Council Personnel Meeting 

6. Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments 
a. Tax Acquired property bid list  
b. Library Board Appointment 
c. Introduction of recently hired Library Director, Peter Baldwin 

7. Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 
a. Ordinance No. 13, 2021 Series, Charter Amendment, Filling Council Vacancies 
b. Ordinance No. 14, 2021 Series, Charter Amendment, Employee Political Activities 

8. Reports by Staff and Committees 
a. Financial Reports for June 
b. Manager’s report  

9. New Business, Ordinances and Resolutions  
a. Resolution 07-01-2021, Establishing the 2021 Property Tax Rates and Related Deadlines 
b. Introduction of Ordinance No. 15, 2021 Series, Charter Amendment, Public Library Committee vacancies 
c. Riverfront committee  

10. Old Business 
a. Maine Municipal Election 
b. Aroostook County ARPA finance position 
c. Dangerous Building at 37 Home Farm Road 

11. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 
a. City Manager  search update 

12. Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under 1 MRSA  §405.6) 
a. Personnel items under §405.6.A. 
b. Real Estate and Economic Development under §405.6.C. 

13. Next Regular Meetings: August  9, August 23 
14. Adjournment 

If you are planning to attend this Public Meeting and due to a disability, need assistance in understanding or 
participating in the meeting, please notify the City ten or more hours in advance and we will, within reason, 
provide what assistance may be required. 

Certificate of Mailing/Posting 
The undersigned duly appointed City official for the municipality of Caribou City hereby certifies that a copy of 
the foregoing Notice and Agenda was posted at City Offices and on-line in accordance with City noticing 
procedures.      
 

BY: ____________________________________ Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

Page 2 
Page 3-6 
Page 7 
Page 8 
 
Page 9-10 
Page 11-12 
 
 
 
Page 13-18 
 
 
Page 19-44 
Page 45-46 
 
Page 47-51 
Page 52-57 
Page 58-63 
 
Page 64-70 
Page 71-76 
Page 77 
 
 
 

1

mailto:dbrissette@cariboumaine.org


July 7, 2021 
21-21 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a Council meeting on Tuesday, July 7, 2021, in the Council chambers at 
3:00 p.m. with the following members present Councilors Ayer, Boma, Goughan, Morrell, Theriault, 
Willey and Mayor Smith 

Council Agenda Item #2:  Executive Session(s)  

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to enter Executive session under MRSA 
§405.6.A at 3:17 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 4:45 p.m. 

No action taken. 

Council Agenda Item #3:  Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Willey to adjourn the meeting at 4:46 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary 

 

 

 

2



July 12, 2021 
21-22 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a City Council Meeting on Monday, July 12, 2021, in the Council 
Chambers with the following members present; Councilors Ayer, Boma, Goughan, Morrell, Theriault, 
Willey and Mayor Smith.   

Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager was present at the meeting. 

Department Managers and Staff:  Kenneth G Murchison (Zoning Administrator), Gary Marquis (Supt. Of 
Parks and Recreation), Christina Kane-Gibson (Events & Marketing Director), David Ouellette (Public 
Works Director), and Michael Gahagan (Police Chief) 

Hannah Catlin of the Aroostook Republican covered the meeting, and it was broadcasted via Spectrum 
and YouTube.  

Council Agenda Item #2:  Invocation /  Inspirational Thought 

Pastor Michael Sullivan from the Untied Baptist Church in Caribou offered an invocation.  

Council Agenda Item #3:  Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Council Agenda Item #4:  Public Forum 

Councilor Morrell requested that we table reading a letter submitted with advice from his Legal Counsel.  

Council Agenda Item #5:  Minutes  

a.  June 22, 2021 City Council Personnel Meeting 

b.  June 28, 2021 City Council Meeting 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Morrell to accept the minutes from June 22 & 
28, 2021 as presented.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #6:  Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 

There were none scheduled for discussion.  

Council Agenda Item #7:  Reports by Staff and Committees 

Mayor Smith expressed his gratitude to Gary and the Staff at the Wellness Center for working together 
and getting the Splash Pad and Park finished and ready to open.  

a.  Manager’s Report 

Interim Manager Penny Thompson reviewed the City Managers Report dated July 12, 2021 

b.  Report on Dangerous Buildings 

Penny Thompson, Assessor’s Agent and Chief Building Official presented information regarding the 
properties on the Dangerous Buildings list.   

3



July 12, 2021 
21-22 Pg. 2 

20 Veronica Street – Kevin Thibodeau has been hired by the property owners to tear down the building.  
He is doing the work at 827 Main Street and plans to go from that project to 20 Veronica 

412 Access Hwy – Working with Caldwell’s to have vehicles removed “at the expense of the project”; 
property has not been conveyed to Ms. Lopez; Last contact with Ms. Lopez was on 7/6, working to get 
property into her name.  Some cars have been removed from the property.    

827 Main Street – Contracted with Thibodeau Trucking & Excavation to dismantle, remove and dispose 
of structure.  Work is nearly 75% complete.  Mr. Thibodeau stated that he is saving money on trips to the 
landfill by recycling and salvaging as much as possible.   

864 Main Street – Contracted with Mark’s Towing to remove the mobile home from park and this is 
done.  

37 Home Farm Road – Most recent update 6/21 was the last despite many attempts; plans to come to 
Maine to bring property into compliance.  Will explore options to accelerate this process and get bids to 
tear it down as allowed under the statute.  

c.  Report on Land Banking and Blight actions by the Code Enforcement Officer 

Kenneth Murchison the city Code Enforcement Officer stated that it is a busy season, and all things are 
visible.  Notices have been sent out and are receiving positive results. 

Riverside Motor Court has experienced a fire.  They are working at something new and opening parts of 
the building.  They are releasing 85% of the building back to occupancy today.   

Business Investment Group (BIG) has identified three properties that have been tax acquired by the City 
of Caribou that have remained nonproductive for years. BIG would like to undertake the role of Land 
Bank and restore these properties for use. 

They would propose to accept 34 Collins Street, 16 Sincock Street, and 15 Nancy Street with the assessed 
value of $26,200 with the intent of developing affordable housing units.  As a nonprofit Big would hold 
these properties exempt from taxes until such time that they have been redeveloped and sold for private 
use.  At that time BIG proposes to realize the original amount of $26,200 to be retained by BIG as 
Caribou’s Land Bank to be dedicated to future re—development projects and the City of Caribou would 
receive $14,000 based on the City of Caribou Bid list dated 11/16/2020 the total minimum sale price for 
the properties.  BIG is also discussing other scenarios around North Street and Midland Street.   

Mayor Smith suggested that BIG come back with a proposal for the council. 

d.  Report from Highway / Protection committee 

Councilor Theriault explained that there was a highway Protection meeting on Thursday, and they 
discussed the River Road Problem and how to make it safer with a temporary realignment.  

Dave Ouellette, director of Public Works explained a temporary realignment on the western side of the 
poles by Guerrette’s Field to Scott Gove’s land.  He explained that the new temporary road would be 
close to the engineered plans but not exact and that it is important to get done because the land is still 
sliding.  He estimates the cost for the temporary realignment to be between $35,000-$36,000 and that it 
would include all the costs that the department would incur. He explained that this would not take away 
from other projects.   

4



July 12, 2021 
21-22 Pg. 3 

Motion made by Councilor Theriault, seconded by Councilor Willey to have the public works department 
do the temporary realignment of the River Road.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #8:  New Business, Ordinances and Resolutions 

a.  Discussion of Nylander Museum 

Gail Hagelstein, Carol Plourde Wolfington, Dana Jones, and Travis Michaud of the Nylander Museum 
board came to discuss concerns regarding the Museum.   

They explained the Theme week that they do such as Dino Days.  They stated that they bring in quality 
and knowledgeable speakers and have family activities such as Make and Take crafts, summer camps and 
many other things.  

Ms Hagelstein explained that they were just recently made aware of the 2015 Ordinance for the Nylander 
that they plan on following.   

The board members explained that they needed help.  They explained that they have in the past had vista 
workers that were able to help move and organize the museum.  The worker also helps with preparing 
traveling trunks according to the curriculum for school that they will be going to.  They are requesting a 
part time employee that can help with the needs of the museum, continue working on inventory and 
organization and that November is their goal for having some additional long-term help for the future.   

They commended John for the help with cleaning at the museum and stated that he does a fantastic job.   

Some concerns outlined are that the air compressor for the sprinkler system has been on back order since 
March and the timeline was given of 3-6 weeks and now it will be sometime at the end of July.   

b.  Modification of Purchase and Sale agreement regarding 142 Lower Lyndon Street 

Motion made by Councilor Morrell, seconded by Councilor Theriault to authorize Interim City Manager 
Penny Thompson to sign the sale agreement to convey the property at 142 Lower Lyndon Street to 
Caldwell’s Auto.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer – Abstain, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

c.  Abatement of Taxes at 142 Lower Lyndon Street 

No Motion was made this will be placed on the July 26th agenda for further discussion.  

Council Agenda Item #9:  Old Business 

There were no items scheduled for discussion under this topic.  

Council Agenda Item #10:  Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

Councilor Boma explained that had an open house for people to come see the designs and site locations 
for the new Police Station.  

5



July 12, 2021 
21-22 Pg. 4 

Mayor Smith explained that he is planning on bringing back the ambulance Committee, but it will have a 
very defined scope of work so that it does not get misconstrued.  Plans are to follow up with the 
discussion at the July 26th meeting for committee appointments.  

Riverfront master plan has resent a letter requesting official recognition as a committee. 

Council Agenda Item #11:   

a.  Poverty Abatement 2021-001 under MRSA §841.2 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Theriault to enter executive session at 7:43 p.m. 
to discuss Poverty Abatement 2021-001 under MRSA §841.2 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer – Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - No, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 8:00 p.m.  

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to deny the poverty abatement 2021-001. 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Notice of decision was circulated and signed.   

Interim City Manager Thompson exited the meeting.  

Motion made by Councilor Willey, seconded by Councilor Theriault to enter executive at 8:04 p.m. 
session to discuss a personnel matter under §405.6.A. 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 8:15 p.m.  

No action was taken.   

Council Agenda Item # 12:  Next Regular Meetings:  July 26 

Council Agenda Item#13:  Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to adjourn the meeting. 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 
L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary  

6



July 20, 2021 
21-23 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a Council meeting on Tuesday July 20, 2021, at the Caribou Inn and 
Convention Center at 5:00 p.m. with the following members present Councilors Ayer, Boma, Goughan, 
and Theriault and Mayor Smith.  Councilor Willey was absent and excused.  Councilor Morrell was 
absent.   

Council Agenda Item #2:  Executive Session(s)  

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to enter Executive session under MRSA 
§405.6.A at 6:41 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Absent, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Absent, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 6:49 p.m. 

No action was taken.  

Council Agenda Item #3:  Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to adjourn the meeting at 6:49 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, D. Morrell - Absent, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Absent, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary 

 

7



July 21, 2021 
21-24 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a Council meeting on Wednesday, July 21, 2021, in the Council chambers 
at 4:00 p.m. with the following members present Councilors Ayer, Boma, Morrell, Theriault, Willey and 
Mayor Smith.  Councilor Goughan was absent and excused.  

Council Agenda Item #2:  Executive Session(s)  

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Willey to enter Executive session under MRSA 
§405.6.A at 4:08 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Absent, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 5:05 p.m. 

Motion made by Councilor Theriault, seconded by Councilor Ayer to propose a job offer to a candidate 
for the City Manager position. 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Absent, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to enter executive session at 5:08 p.m. to 
discuss personnel matters under MRSA §405.6.A 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Absent, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted). 

Council exited executive session at 5:18 p.m.  

No action taken.  

Council Agenda Item #3:  Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilor Ayer, seconded by Councilor Boma to adjourn the meeting at 5:20 p.m.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan – Absent, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - 
Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary 

 

 

8



9



10



 

30 High Street • Caribou, Maine • 04736 | 207-493-4214 |CaribouPublicLibrary.org 

Where heritage meets innovation. 

July 21, 2021 
 
Mr. Mayor, City Councilors and Interim City Manageress, Penny Thompson, 
 
The departure of our AnaLee Marker to more sunburned pastures has left a vacancy on the 
Library’s Board of Trustees. Her term officially ends on December 31, 2022. While we are happy 
AnaLee will be with family once again, her quiet gentleness will be greatly missed! ����� 
 
We are delighted to inform you that Lisa Wilcox, a former library employee and ardent library 
supporter, has submitted her application to fill the vacant position – we hope to keep her in 
said position for many years to come! ���� Lisa is an amazing candidate and will be a wonderful 
asset to our board with her “can do” attitude! All that is missing is your approval. Please raise 
your right hand and loudly yell, “AYE!” to install Lisa on our Board of Trustees! ���� 
 
Thank you so very much! ���� 
~Hope 

11



12



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager 
Date:   07/22/2021 
Re:   Public Hearings on July 26 Agenda 

 

Public Hearings are needed for Council agenda Items 7a and 7b 

Agenda Item 7a. Ordinance 13, Charter Amendment - Filling of Vacancies on the City Council  

This ordinance was introduced during the June 14, 2021 Council Meeting. This ordinance formalizes the 
city’s procedures for filling vacancies on the City Council. 

Amendment. 
Caribou City Charter Section 2.06 Vacancies; Forfeiture of Office; filling of Vacancies 
paragraph (d) is amended as follows: (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
(d) Filling of Vacancies. A vacancy in any elected office shall be filled for the remainder of 
the unexpired term, if any, at the next regular or special municipal election or referendum 
held not less than 60 days from the occurrence of the vacancy, but the Council, by a majority 
vote of its members, shall appoint a qualified person within 30 60 days of a vacancy to fill 
the vacancy until the person elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired term takes 
office. Prior to selecting a person to fill a vacancy, the Council shall provide a 14-day public 
notice of the vacancy and invitation for eligible persons to submit a letter of interest and 
resume to the Council for consideration. The Council shall be limited to select from only 
those persons who submit letters of interest. This provision shall also apply to the position 
of Mayor , Council Chairperson, (or) Deputy Mayor, however the person filling a Mayor or 
Deputy Mayor vacancy shall not assume such roles unless so elected by the Council in 
accordance with Section 2.03.  

 

Agenda Item 7b. Ordinance 14, Charter Amendment – Employee Political Activities  

This ordinance was introduced during the June 14, 2021 Council Meeting.  This ordinance prohibits the 
use of city resources in political campaigns and prohibits city employees from participating in any 
political campaign during assigned work hours. 

Amendment. 
Caribou City Charter Section 9.02 Prohibitions paragraph (a)(5) is amended as follows: 
(underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
(5) No city employee shall knowingly or willfully use city materials, equipment, or other 
city resources to make, solicit or receive any contribution to the campaign funds of any 
political party or committee to be used in a city election or to campaign funds to be used 
in support of or opposition to any candidate for election to city office or city ballot issued. 

13



Further, no city employee shall knowingly or willfully participate in any aspect of any 
political campaign on behalf of or opposition to any candidate for city public office during 
their assigned work hours. This section shall not be construed to prevent an employee 
from performing their regular duties under state FOAA guidelines, nor limit any person’s 
right to exercise rights as a citizen to express opinions or to cast a vote nor shall it be 
construed to prohibit any person from active participation in political campaigns at any 
other level of government outside of work hours. 

 

The above charter amendment ordinances must be approved by the Council subject to ratification by 
the voting public in a general election. The Council will need to act on the Charter amendments 
before September 1 to have them on the November ballot as intended.  

14



Ordinance Introduced by Councilor Ayer 
on June 14, 2021 

 
Ordinance No. 13, 2021 Series 

City of Caribou 
County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY CHARTER BY CLARIFYING THE 
PROCESS FOR FILLING A VACANCY ON THE CITY COUNCIL  
Short Title: Filling a Vacancy on the Council 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 
granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Charter outlines the city’s form of government and means by which a 
City Councilor is eligible to hold, retain or forfeit their elected position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is prudent to modify the process by which a vacancy 
on the City Council is filled; and 
  
WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 
citizens at the next general election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of 
Maine, pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11, and Maine 
Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following 
changes to the Charter.  
 
Section I. Amendments to Filling a Vacancy on the City Council 

 
Caribou City Charter Section 2.06 Vacancies; Forfeiture of Office; filling of Vacancies 
paragraph (d) is amended as follows: (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
(d) Filling of Vacancies. A vacancy in any elected office shall be filled for the remainder of the 
unexpired term, if any, at the next regular or special municipal election or referendum held not less 
than 60 days from the occurrence of the vacancy, but the Council, by a majority vote of its members, 
shall appoint a qualified person within 30 60 days of a vacancy to fill the vacancy until the person 
elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired term takes office. Prior to selecting a person to fill 
a vacancy, the Council shall provide a 14-day public notice of the vacancy and invitation for eligible 
persons to submit a letter of interest and resume to the Council for consideration. The Council shall 
be limited to select from only those persons who submit letters of interest. This provision shall also 
apply to the position of Mayor , Council Chairperson, (or) Deputy Mayor, however the person filling 
a Mayor or Deputy Mayor vacancy shall not assume such roles unless so elected by the Council in 
accordance with Section 2.03.  

 
Section II.  Severability 
If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 
any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 
judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application 
thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, 

15



subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in 
the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the 
intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if such invalid section, 
provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not been included. 
 
Section III. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on June 14, 2021 and a public hearing being held on July 26, 
2021 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, Maine, this _____day of 
__________________ 2021. This ordinance shall become effective 24 hours after affirming vote 
of the citizens during the November 2021 election.  

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Jody Smith, Mayor    Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Courtney Boma, Councilor   R. Mark Goughan, Councilor 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Doug Morrell, Councilor    Joan Theriault, Councilor  
 
______________________________   
Louella Willey, Councilor  
        Attest: 
 

______________________________ 
Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

16



Ordinance Introduced by Councilor Ayer 
on June 14, 2021 

 
Ordinance No. 14, 2021 Series 

City of Caribou 
County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY CHARTER BY CLARIFYING 
LIMITATIONS ON CITY EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 
Short Title: Employee Political Activities 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 
granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Charter outlines general duties and responsibilities of elected and 
appointed officials of the City, including employees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the first amendment of the United States Constitution provides that there shall be 
no laws abridging the freedom of speech; and 
 
WHEREAS, in light of the first amendment of the United States Constitution, the City Council 
believes it is prudent to clarify those actions which may be considered related to freedom of 
speech and which city employees are prohibited from conducting; and 
  
WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 
citizens at the next general election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of 
Maine, pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11, and Maine 
Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following 
changes to the Charter.  
 
Section I. Amendments to Prohibited Employee Activities 

 
Caribou City Charter Section 9.02 Prohibitions paragraph (a)(5) is amended as follows: 
(underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
(5) No city employee shall knowingly or willfully use city materials, equipment, or other city 
resources to make, solicit or receive any contribution to the campaign funds of any political party 
or committee to be used in a city election or to campaign funds to be used in support of or 
opposition to any candidate for election to city office or city ballot issued. Further, no city 
employee shall knowingly or willfully participate in any aspect of any political campaign on behalf 
of or opposition to any candidate for city public office during their assigned work hours. This 
section shall not be construed to prevent an employee from performing their regular duties under 
state FOAA guidelines, nor limit any person’s right to exercise rights as a citizen to express 
opinions or to cast a vote nor shall it be construed to prohibit any person from active participation 
in political campaigns at any other level of governmentoutside of work hours. 

 
  

17



Section II.  Severability 
If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 
any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 
judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application 
thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, 
subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in 
the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the 
intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if such invalid section, 
provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not been included. 
 
Section III. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on June 14, 2021, and a public hearing being held on July 26, 
2021 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, Maine, this _____day of 
__________________ 2021. This ordinance shall become effective 24 hours after affirming vote 
of the citizens during the November 2021 election.  

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Jody Smith, Mayor    Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Courtney Boma, Councilor   R. Mark Goughan, Councilor 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Doug Morrell, Councilor    Joan Theriault, Councilor  
 
______________________________   
Louella Willey, Councilor  
        Attest: 
 

______________________________ 
Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



City Manager's Report
July 12, 2021

Economic Projects

River Front - Powerplants County Environmental Engineering working on revised Phase 1 environmental site assessment & scope of work.

Broadband Initiative Business Investment Group has a plan to share with the City Council.

Ogren Dump Solar Project No further updates from SynerGen Solar 

2021 CDBG Application The project was not selected for funding

Events and Marketing
July 29: Wreaths Across America traveling display trailer; As part of Caribou Cares & Caribou Days July 29 ‐ August 1: July 29 @ 
3pm is Caribou Community School ribbon cutting and school tours & July 31 @ 10:30 is Splash Pad Ribbon Cutting; July 29 is 
Thursdays on Sweden Street; Parade on July 30

Landbank Business Investment Group has a plan to share with the City Council.

Chapter 13 Rewrite Planning Board will continue to prioritize

Federal American Rescue Plan Act Agreement with the County of Aroostook on tonight's agenda

Blight Cleanup Business Investment Group has a plan to share with the City Council.

Birdseye Cleanup Haley Ward working on scope of work so it can be put out for bids for fall execution

60 Access Highway Investigating "Mecon Street"

River Front - Master Plan On tonight's agenda for discussion

Façade Improvement Program No work has started: Bennett Drive contractor will begin in November; Otter Street, materials on site

Hilltop Senior Living No update since last report

Sitel Building No update since last report

Aldrich ATV/Snowmobile Storage No update since last report

Jarosz Storage - Limestone St Construction continues, local contractors are doing a great job

45



Other Administrative Projects

New City Manager Recruitment City Council will provide an update tonight

Union Negotiations. All contracts approved / No update since last report

Tax Acquired Property Policy On tonight's agenda for City Council consideration

Fire Structural Work 7/21: Inspector conducted inspection for the warranty; report is forthcoming

Teague Park Splash Pad ribbon cutting as part of Caribou Cares & Caribou Days: July 29 @ 10: 30 am

Public Safety Building Artifex working on next steps to bring to the City Council

Fire Station Renovations 7/16: Received another bid for sprinklers; Need sprinklers prior to renovations;

Investment Policy Next meeting: July 26 at 5pm

Trailer Park Closure 7/20: CEO Murchison drafted a letter to remind remaining residents of November 17, 2021 final park closure date.

Fish Hatchery Bridge No updates since last report

Cable Franchise Renewal No update since last report

Airport 7/20: Airport Committee meeting; Seth Lovely of Stantec has been on vacation

City Hall Boiler Systems One proposal was received from Dead River / no update

Chambers AV System No complaints received on sound on YouTube or Public Access Channel at July 12 meeting

River Road Received proposal correspondance from Dr. Chomka. (sent to Council for review)

New LED Street lights No update since last report

Comp Plan Update No update since last report

Wage Policy No further action at this time.

COVID-19 Status 6/30: official end of the Governor's State of Civil Emergency

Personnel Policy No further action at this time.

Parking Lot Paving No update since last report

Procurement Policy No update since last report
Personnel Changes No update since last report
Administrative Approvals No administrative approvals since last report

46



 
 
 
 

 
To:   Mayor Smith, Caribou City Council Members & Manager Marker 
From:   Penny Thompson, tax assessment department 
Date:   July 22, 2021 
Re:   Set 2021 tax rate and property tax commitment  
 
At the July 22 , 2021 meeting, the Caribou City Council may set the 2021 tax rate and 
approved the other motions associated with the annual tax commitment.  
 
This is a summary of the actions to be taken at the meeting: 
 

1. Set a tax rate for the commitment of 2021 property taxes. Action: set the 2021 
tax rate at _________________________; Staff Recommendation:  .02355 (no 
change from 2020). Additional valuation is sufficient to cover County increase. 
 

2. Set the date of commitment for the 2021 property taxes to be committed to 
the Tax Collector as pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505 (1). Action: Set a 
commitment date of __________________________________________ ; Staff 
Recommendation:  July 30, 2021 (Typically is July 1, it is best to commit as 
soon as possible after setting the tax rate). 

 
3. Established a date that the 2021 property taxes will be due and payable, 

pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505 (2).  Action: Set the due date as 
____________________________________________ Staff Recommendation: 
August 13, 2021 (Typically 10 days to 2 weeks after commitment date). 
 

4. Established a date for interest to begin accruing on any delinquent 2021 
property taxes, pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505 (4).  Action: Set the date for 
interest to begin as ___________________________ Staff Recommendation: 
Friday October 1, 2021 (Typically October 1, 2021. Note: last day to pay before 
interest begins would be Thursday September 30, 2021.) 

 
5. Established a rate of interest to be charged on delinquent 2021 property taxes, 

pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505(4).  Action: Set the rate of interest on 
delinquent taxes at ____________________________% Staff 
Recommendation: 6%  (Typically set at the state maximum). 

 
6. Established a rate of interest for the overpayment and or abatement of 

property taxes for 2021, pursuant to MRSA Title 36 § 506-A.  Action: Set the 
rate of interest on overpayment and or abatement of property taxes at 
____________% Staff Recommendation: 0%  (Typically 0%)  
 

 
 

CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE              Phone:   (207) 493-3324 X 3 
                 Fax:   (207) 498-3954 

 

   Office of Tax Assessment & Code Enforcement Municipal Building 
25 High Street 

Caribou, Me 04736 

47



7. In speaking with the software provider – Trio – it is recommended that 
municipal offices close early on the last business day of the year to allow ample 
time to finish all year-end process while the Trio support line is available. Staff 
Recommendation: Close the city office at 1:00 pm on Thursday December 30, 
2021 so staff can complete year end. NOTE: For the next three years, the last 
business day of the year will NOT be December 31 because of the New Year’s 
Day holiday. By deciding now to close the office early, staff can print this on 
the tax bills and alert taxpayers to the early closure.  

 
 
The enhanced BETE tax rate calculator is on the following pages. 
 
 

48



Municipality:

1. Total taxable valuation of real estate 1

2. Total taxable valuation of personal property 2

3. Total taxable valuation of real estate and personal property (Line 1 plus line 2) 3 $350,035,800
(must match  MVR Page 1, line 11)

4. (a) Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted 4(a)

(b) Homestead exemption reimbursement value 4(b)

5. (a) Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 5(a)

(b) Enhanced BETE exemption reimbursement value 5(b)

6. Total valuation base (Line 3 plus line 4(b) plus line 5(b)) 6 $393,973,345
 ASSESSMENTS

7. County tax 7

8. Municipal appropriation 8

9. TIF financing plan amount 9

10. Local education appropriation (Local share/contribution) 10
    (Adjusted to municipal fiscal year)

11. Total appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10) 11 $14,562,002.48
ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS

12. Anticipated state municipal revenue sharing 12

13. Other revenues: (All other revenues that have been formally 13
appropriated to reduce the commitment such as excise tax revenue, T.G. reimbursement, renewable energy reimbursement,
trust fund or bank interest income, appropriated surplus revenue, etc. (Do not include any homestead or BETE reimbursement)

14. 14 $5,416,984.00

15. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) 15 $9,145,018.48

16. $9,145,018.48 x 1.05   = $9,602,269.40 Maximum Allowable Tax
(Amount from line 15)

17. $9,145,018.48 ÷ $393,973,345  = 0.02321 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 15) (Amount from line 6)

18. $9,602,269.40 ÷ $393,973,345  = 0.02437 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 16) (Amount from line 6)

19. $350,035,800.00 x 0.02355  = $8,243,343.09 Tax for Commitment
(Amount from line 3) (Selected Rate) (Enter on MVR Page 1, line 13)

20. $9,145,018.48 x 0.05  = $457,250.92 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from line 15)  

21. $36,095,430 x 0.02355  = $850,047.38 Homestead Reimbursement
(Amount from line 4b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 8, Assessment Warrant)

22. $7,842,115 x 0.02355  = $184,681.82 BETE Reimbursement
(Amount from line 5b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 9, Assessment Warrant)

23. $9,278,072.28 - $9,145,018.48  = $133,053.80 Overlay
(Line 19 plus lines 21 and 22 )

(must match MVR Page 2, line 15c)

$476,174.66

$3,671,829.00

$1,200,000.00

$4,216,984.00

(Amount from line 15) (Enter on line 5, Assessment Warrant)

Results from this completed form should be used to prepare the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, 
Certificate of Assessment to Municipal Treasurer and Municipal Valuation Return.

   (If Line 23 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

Total deductions (Line 12 plus line 13)

(must match  MVR Page 1, line 6)

(must match MVR Page 1, line 10)

(must match  MVR Page 1, line 14f)

2021 ENHANCED BETE MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION  FORM

Caribou
BE SURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM BEFORE FILLING IN THE TAX ASSESSMENT WARRANT

$336,622,500

$13,413,300

$51,564,900

$36,095,430

$14,463,600

$7,842,115

$552,757.60

$9,861,241.22

Page 2 49



Data entry fields
Municipality:

1. Standard BETE Reimbursement Computation

(a) Total valuation of ALL BETE qualified exempt property as of April 1, 2021 $14,566,400
(must match MVR Page 2, line 15c.)

(b)
$14,566,400

(c) Percent of reimbursement for BETE exempt property (2021 statutory standard 50% reimbursement ) 50.00%

(d) Valuation of all BETE qualified exempt property subject to standard reimbursement $0

2. Enhanced Reimbursement if Personal Property Factor Exceeds 5% of Total Taxable Value

(a) Total value of all business personal property $27,979,700

(b) Total value of all taxable real and personal property $350,035,800

(c) Total valuation of all BETE qualified exempt property subject to enhanced reimbursement if not $14,566,400
located in a Municipal Retention TIF District  subject to a > % of line 2.(f)            

(d) Personal property factor [2a. / (2b. + 1a.)] 7.67%

(e) Line 2d. / 2 3.84%

(f) Line 2(e) plus 50%  (if line 2(d) is greater than 5%) 53.84%

(g) Valuation of all BETE qualified exempt property subject to Enhanced reimbursement $7,842,115
(if zero results see below)

3. Municipal Retention Tax Increment Percentage

(a) 0.00% 50.00%

(b) Captured Assessed Value of BETE qualified property located within a Municipal Retention TIF district

(c) Valuation of all TIF BETE qualified exempt property subject to reimbursement $0
(if zero results see below)

4. Total Reimbursable BETE Exempt Valuation
(a) Total of all reimbursable BETE Exempt Valuation   1.(d) or 2.(g)+ 3.(c) $7,842,115

Percentage of captured assessed value retained by the municipality and allocated 
for the municipality's own authorized TIF project costs approved as of 4/1/2008. 
(Defaults to Statutory Standard unless Municipal Retention % is greater than standard 
reimbursement)

Total valuation of all BETE qualified exempt property not located in a Municipal 
Retention Tax Increment Financing District          (Line 1a. minus line 3b.) 

BE SURE TO COMPLETE AND FILE THIS FORM IN CONJUNCTION WITH ENHANCED BETE TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM

Caribou

ENHANCED BUSINESS EQUIPMENT TAX EXEMPTION CALC SHEET
2021 ENHANCED BETE MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION  FORM

( include all taxable and all exempt BETE qualified business personal property )

Page 2 50



 

 

 

Resolution 07-01-2021 

A Resolution of the Caribou City Council  
Establishing the 2021 Tax Mil Rate and Collection Items 

 
WHEREAS, The City is authorized under Maine State law to levy and collect taxes as needed to cover 
adopted city budgets expenses, and 
 
WHEREAS, The levying of taxes must be uniformly applied based on the taxable value of real estate and 
personal property, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Assessor’s Agent has completed calculation of 2021 taxable real estate and personal 
property values in accordance with State of Maine Assessing laws and practices, and  
 
WHEREAS, The Caribou City Charter now requires the Council to set a tax mil rate prior to June 30, and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY, THE CARIBOU CITY COUNCIL that  
1) the 2021 tax mil rate shall be .02355 (the same rate as 2020) 
2) the date of commitment for the 2021 property taxes to be committed to the Tax Collector as pursuant 

to MRSA Title 36, §505 (1) shall be July 30, 2021. 
3) Property taxes shall be due and payable, on August 13, 2021, pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505 (2).   
4) Interest shall begin accruing on any delinquent 2021 property taxes on October 1, 2021, pursuant to 

MRSA title 36, §505 (4).   
5) The rate of interest to be charged on delinquent 2021 property taxes, pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §505 

(4) shall be six percent (6.0%).   
6) The rate of interest to be applied for the overpayment and or abatement of property taxes for 2021, 

pursuant to MRSA Title 36, §506-A shall be zero percent (0.0%).   
7) The revenue budget shall be amended as follow: 

 
Line Number Description Original Budget Amended Budget (.02355) 
R10-01-32 Property Taxes $ 3,799,448.00 $   3,409,080.58 
R10-01-34 Overlay $    0 $      133,053.80 
R11-01-01 Economic Development (TIF) $    324,042.23 $      476,174.66 
R22-01-04 Homestead Exemption $    684,600.00 $      850,047.38 
R22-01-05 BETE Reimbursement $    155,000.00 $      184,681.82 

 
This resolution was duly passed and approved by a majority of the City Council of the City of Caribou this 
26th day of July 2021.  
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Jody R. Smith, Mayor    Attest: Danielle Brissette, City Clerk  

[City Seal]    

51



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager 
Date:   07/22/2021 
Re:   Introduction of Ordinance No. 15, 2021 Series on July 26 Agenda 

 

A formal Introduction is needed for Council agenda item 9b for a Public Hearing on August 23, 2021. 

This was requested after the May 4, 2021 meeting of the Caribou Public Library Committee (minutes 
attached), page 2 under d. Bylaws approval. 

Introduction of Ordinance No. 15, 2021 Series, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY 
CHARTER BY CLARIFYING THE PROCESS FOR FILLING A VACANCY ON THE 
PUBLIC LIBRARY COMMITTEE  
 
Short Title: Filling a Vacancy on the Public Library Committee 
 

Caribou City Charter Section 2.17 Public Library Committee paragraph is amended as 
follows: (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
The City Council of Caribou shall appoint by a majority vote of the membership, a Public Library 
Committee of not exceeding seven (7) members. As each term expires, the City Council shall 
annually elect for five (5) three (3) years one or more members to fill, in the usual manner, the 
vacancies which have occurred. The Committee shall organize and designate its chairperson. The 
Caribou Public Library Committee shall me responsible for the management of the library and to 
submit reports as requested by the City Council. 

 

The above charter amendment ordinances must be approved by the Council subject to ratification by 
the voting public in a general election. The Council will need to act on the Charter amendments 
before September 1 to have them on the November ballot as intended.  

52



Ordinance Introduced by Councilor _______________ 
on July 26, 2021 

 
Ordinance No. 15, 2021 Series 

City of Caribou 
County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY CHARTER BY CLARIFYING THE 
PROCESS FOR FILLING A VACANCY ON THE PUBLIC LIBRARY COMMITTEE  
Short Title: Filling a Vacancy on the Public Library Committee 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 
granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Charter outlines the city’s form of government and means by which a 
City Councilor is eligible to hold, retain or forfeit their elected position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is prudent to modify the process by which a vacancy 
on the City Council is filled; and 
  
WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 
citizens at the next general election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of 
Maine, pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11, and Maine 
Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following 
changes to the Charter.  
 
Section I. Amendments to Filling a Vacancy on the Public Library Committee 

 
Caribou City Charter Section 2.17 Public Library Committee paragraph is amended as 
follows: (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 
The City Council of Caribou shall appoint by a majority vote of the membership, a Public Library 
Committee of not exceeding seven (7) members. As each term expires, the City Council shall 
annually elect for five (5) three (3) years one or more members to fill, in the usual manner, the 
vacancies which have occurred. The Committee shall organize and designate its chairperson. The 
Caribou Public Library Committee shall me responsible for the management of the library and to 
submit reports as requested by the City Council. 

 
Section II.  Severability 
If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 
any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 
judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application 
thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, 
subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in 
the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the 
intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if such invalid section, 
provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not been included. 
 

53



Section III. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on July 26, 2021 and a public hearing being held on August 23, 
2021 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, Maine, this _____day of 
__________________ 2021. This ordinance shall become effective 24 hours after affirming vote 
of the citizens during the November 2021 election.  

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Jody Smith, Mayor    Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Courtney Boma, Councilor   R. Mark Goughan, Councilor 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Doug Morrell, Councilor    Joan Theriault, Councilor  
 
______________________________   
Louella Willey, Councilor  
        Attest: 
 

______________________________ 
Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

54



Caribou Public Library (CPL) Board of Trustees meeting
May 4, 2021 via Zoom
PRESENT:Jane Foster, Gail Hagelstein, Kathryn Olmstead, Wanda Theriault, Brianna Carlson,
Kristine Bondeson; Hope Shafer – Library Director

Meeting Commenced at 6pm

1. Approval of Minutes from April 6, 2021; (3 min)
a. Hope had a correction for the FOTL minutes.
b. Wanda moved to accept the minutes, Kathy seconded and the minutes were

approved unanimously by show of hands.

2. Review Financials; (5 min)
a. We are right where we should be, not too much spent 33.59% spent on

books/periodicals.
b. A few small book orders are outstanding.
c. Kristine moved to accept the financials, Wanda seconded and the financials were

approved unanimously by show of hands.

3. Director’s Report; Highlights; (10 min)
a. Circulation continues to look good- we were down some on the circulation, but

the displays were not counted in this. DVD circulation numbers decreased, but
compared to previous Aprils, it is an increase.  This also corresponds to the
weather, as more people will be outside.

b. The baskets/boxes continue to be well received.
c. Kathy moved to accept the Director’s report, Kristine seconded and the Director’s

report was approved unanimously by show of hands.

4. Old Business
a. Review of May and June happenings for Board (gift baskets, silent auction)

i. Book sale- May 15th . Setting up for the book sale- Hope welcomes
volunteers, but staff is able to do the bulk of the setup.

ii. Upcoming baskets:
June- adult- Hope, Kathy,
June- child- Kristine, Analee
August- adult- Gail, Wanda
August- child- Brianna, Wanda

b. CPL Swag
i. Logo- we are making teen mugs with logo and book lights for teen

summer reading. Christina Kane-Gibson at the Rec (City events
coordinator)

ii. Items- She can do the stickers, and has ordered mugs from the dollar
tree.

55



c. Friends update
i. Three new applications (lifetime). Wanda will come pick them up.
ii. Kathy wants to do a newsletter and include the names.Also, a press

release to publicize the group.
iii. We will add a release to future applications to include names in

press reports/ newsletters.

d. Bylaws approval
i. It is suggested that we change the term from 5 years to 3.
ii. The process to change the term would be- Gail will notify Dennis that the

board requests to change from 5 to 3 years.
iii. Wanda moved to initiate the process, Kathy seconded, and the motion

was approved unanimously by show of hands.
iv. Wanda moved to accept the bylaws as written pending necessary

approvals as required by the city to modify term limits down to 3 years
from 5.  Kristine seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously by
show of hands.

v. Wanda will contact Danielle Brissette dbrissette@cariboumaine.org
With the new version.

e. Advocacy planning
i. Fundraising, volunteering, advocacy- has been discussed above in 4.a.

and 4.c.
ii. Why I Love This Library- Hope will create a pillar where she can put the

colorful “why I love the library” cards on the pole.
iii. Teen advisory board- Hope has access to plenty of teens, but may have

to consider using zoom to begin the program.

f. Plant sale update- June 5th perennial sale Corey will not be able to pick up
plants. Hope and Brianna can pick up plants.

g. Summer reading programs-
i. Teens- How can we get our teens to return the forms? Suggestions of

snacks or logging the books in a notebook to document. Hope also has
used scratch-off instant prizes in the past, and still has the materials to do
this again.

5. New Business
a. Discussion of meeting in-person-

i. September meeting will start at 5:30 to allow for an early ending of the
meeting.

ii. We will continue to employ zoom/hybrid/in person meetings as
appropriate.

56

mailto:dbrissette@cariboumaine.org


6. Roundtable of Board members and Councilor
a. Kathy will write a press release.
b. Jane- will come get money from baskets and checks.
c. Hope-Nylander- Dennis recommended we combine the Nylander and the library.

Hope suggests that we maintain two separate budgets and separate boards.

7. Adjournment
a. The May 4, 2021 Caribou Public Library board meeting concluded at 7:36pm.
b. Kathy moved to adjourn, Wanda seconded and the meeting was adjourned

unanimously by show of hands

4, 2021 Friends Of The Library Foundation Meeting
PRESENT:Jane Foster, Gail Hagelstein, Kathryn Olmstead, Wanda Theriault, Brianna Carlson,
Kristine Bondeson; Hope Shafer – Library Director

1. Wanda moved that we not meet as a foundation board today, as there is no new
information to discuss at this time. Kristine seconded and the meeting was adjourned
unanimously by show of hands

57



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager 
Date:   07/22/2021 
Re:   Riverfront Committee 

 

The Riverfront Committee has brought forth a letter seeking official recognition.  

I am attaching Chapter 16 of the City Ordinances which outlines the formation of the Community 
Alcohol and Drug Education Team (CADET). If the City Council would like to move forward with 
formal recognition of this group, it could use this as a guide and bring something back to the City 
Council for review at a future meeting. 

58



59



60



Chapter 16  Community Alcohol and Drug Education Team (CADET) 
 

ARTICLE 1  CADET 
 
 

Section 
 
16-101 Preamble 
16-102 Appointment and Tenure 
16-103 Responsibility 
16-104 Bylaws 
16-105 Compensation Benefits 
16-106 Purpose 
16-107 Funding 
16-108 Reporting Requirements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

976 

61



Chapter 16 Community Alcohol and Drug Education Team (CADET) 
 

ARTICLE I  CADET 
 

Sec. 16-101 Preamble 
 
Whereas, the Caribou area Community Alcohol and Drug Education Team (CADET) has existed since 
1991, under the auspices of the Caribou School Department, to pursue the following mission: 
 
  The Community Alcohol and Drug Education Team, a group of concerned citizens, 
 Recognizes the fact that substance abuse is a widespread problem that will require a  
 varied and ongoing commitment from all segments of the community. 
  The functions of this team will be to develop formalized educational programs, facilitate 
 Community education and access to assistance, and promote a climate that positively  
 encourages community change. 
  It has as its goal the decrease of alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse and dependency. 
 
Whereas, throughout its six year history, CADET has enjoyed strong and continuous support from the 
Caribou Board of Education; and a number of very effective programs and initiatives in the area of 
substance abuse prevention and intervention have been implemented in the Caribou school; 
 
Whereas, the members of CADET now believe that its base of support and its activities must be moved 
into the “community as a whole”  for greater participation and effectiveness; and to accomplish such, 
CADET should become an agency of the City of Caribou; and 
 
Whereas, the Federal Drug Free Communities Act of 1997 provides for significant grants to any 
community in America that can sustain, for six months, a strong, high participation, anti-drug coalition 
(including parents, teachers, businesses, law enforcement officers, churches, doctors, policy makers and 
others). 
 
Sec. 16-102 Appointment and Tenure 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ADOPTED by the Caribou City Council pursuant to Sec. 2.11 of the Caribou City 
Charter, as follows: 
 
(a) The Caribou area Community Alcohol and Drug Education Team (CADET) is hereby designated 
an agency of the City of Caribou, composed of five members of the public to be appointed by the City 
Council, and four ex-officio members, one member of the City Council to be appointed by the City 
Council, one from Eastern Aroostook RSU #39 to be appointed by the Eastern Aroostook RSU #39 
School Board one from the Caribou Police Department to be appointed by the Chief of Police, and one 
from Caribou Medical Center to be appointed by the Board of Directors of Cary Medical Center; said 
nine members to be designated as Team Leadership.  Public members shall be appointed for year three 
terms; except however initial appointments shall be made as follows:  two for three year terms, two for 
two year terms and one for a one year term.  Ex-officio members shall serve indefinitely, at the pleasure 
of the appointing authority.  Members may be residents of Caribou or any other community which is 
part of the Eastern Aroostook RSU #39. 

 
 

978 

62



Sec. 16-103 Responsibility  
 
(b) The City Manager shall be responsible for the organization, administration and operation of 
CADET; except however, said responsibilities may be delegated to and withdrawn from Team 
Leadership as the City Manager shall deem appropriate. 
 
Sec. 16-104 Bylaws 
 
(c) Team Leadership shall adopt by-laws providing for the officers, organization and activities of the 
team; including a provision for the appointment by Team Leadership of an unlimited number of 
additional team members; which by-laws shall be approved by the City Manager. 
 
Sec. 16-105 Compensation Benefits 
 
(d) No member of CADET, other than employees of the city in other capacities serving ex officio 
pursuant to section (a) and any person who may be specifically employed by the city for CADET related 
activities, shall receive any compensation for CADET activities, nor shall they be deemed an agent or 
employee of the city entitled to any customary employment benefits, specifically including but not 
limited to workers’  compensation. 
 
Sec. 16-106 Purpose 
 
(e) The purpose of CADET shall be to develop formalized educational programs, facilitate 
community education and access to assistance, and promote a climate that positively encourages 
community change.   It has as its goal the decrease of alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse and 
dependency; and to seek and administer grant funds from any appropriate source, including but not 
limited to the Federal Drug Free Community Support Program. 
 
Sec. 1-107 Funding 
 
(f) All grant application seeking funds in excess of $2500.00 shall be approved by the City Council, 
and all funds of the Caribou Alcohol and Drug Education Team shall be administered through the City 
Manager’s office; except however, CADET may maintain an independent revolving account, not to 
exceed a balance of $1000.00 at any one time, for the purpose of conducting team activities.  Said 
amount shall be audited annually at the direction of the City Council. 
 
(g) There shall be no appropriation of city tax revenues for CADET activities 
 
Sec. 16-108 Reporting Requirements 
 
(h) CADET shall file an annual report of activities with the City Manager on or before January 31st 
of each year for the preceding year. 
 
_________________ 
Historical Note:   Adopted March 3, 1998; Section 16-102 as amended November 9, 2009. 
 
 
 

979 

63



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager 
Date:   07/22/2021 
Re:   Maine Municipal Association Annual Election 

 

I have for your consideration the MMA Voting Ballot for MMA Vice President and Executive 
Committee Members. There is no process for “Write-in Candidates”. A formal announcement of 
the election results will be made at the MMA Annual Business Meeting being held and live 
broadcasted on Thursday September 30 at 11:00 am. 

I request a motion for the council to move the slate as presented and authorize me to sign as the 
municipal official designated by a majority of the municipal officers.  

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, Interim City Manager 
Date:   07/22/2021 
Re:   American Rescue Plan (ARP) Service Contract with County of Aroostook 

 

I have for your consideration the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Service Contract with the County 
of Aroostook.  

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) is a federal law which will provide state, county and local 
governments with resources to respond to the impact of the recent pandemic. The State of Maine 
will disburse funds  to “Non-Entitlement Units” like Caribou soon. In an effort to build a coalition 
to streamline the process of fund reporting and provide consultation services, the County of 
Aroostook will hire a fund manager. This fund manager will work to administer all County funds 
and will also be available for services to during regular business hours for member municipalities. 

If a municipality requests funds from the County’s ARP allotment for eligible projects, all 
compliance monitoring and reporting must be done by the Fund Manager. If a municipality invests 
2% of the American Rescue Plan funds received to join the partnership, the fund manager will 
provide services at no additional cost to the municipality. If the municipality does not join, any 
County funds requested would require that the County of Aroostook charge for compliance on an 
hourly billable rate for compliance and administration.  

This cost is an eligible expense under the American Rescue Plan, it would be paid as the state 
releases the funds to the City of Caribou. The City of Caribou is expected to receive $801,892.48 
according to the most recent estimate. The cost for the ARP Service Contract with the County of 
Aroostook is expected to be $16,037.85 and would be in effect until December 31, 2024. The 
actual cost will be based on the amount of funds received.  

This is an example of a partnership that has an advantage of having the expertise of a skilled 
professional without creating an in-house position for this short-term need. 

As of this writing, 22 municipalities have signed on to join this coalition. 

 

71



72



County of Aroostook 
  COMMISSIONERS' OFFICE. _ 

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
RYAN D. PELI.ETIER 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

PAUL J. ADAMS 
HOULTON 

 

NORMAN L .FOURNIER 
WAUAGRASS 

 

PAULJ. UNDERWOOD 
PRESQUE ISLE 

 

 

County of Aroostook 

American Rescue Plan (ARP} 

Program Administrator 

The County of Aroostook is recruiting for a talent driven, highly motivated and engaging individual to 

help guide and develop programs and policies in support of the County's $13 Million allocation of 

American Rescue Plan funding from the United States Treasury. The successful candidate will work 

collaboratively with county administration, elected officials and local town and city leaders 

throughout Aroostook County and help navigate the myriad of state and federal programs over the 

next 3-5 year period. The Program Administrator will serve as the liaison between area non-profits, 

special districts and state and federal agencies in support of the American Rescue Plan infrastructure 

projects. 

Experience in community planning, group facilitation, social media engagement and data driven 

models is highly desirable. 

The County offers a generous benefit package and work from home opportunities. Salary is negotiable 

and commensurate with education and experience. To be considered for this exciting and 

transformative position, please submit resume, cover letter and three professional references by July 

16, 2021 to: 

 

 
Ryan D. Pelletier, County Administrator 

144 Sweden Street, Suite 1 

Caribou, ME 04736 

 
OR email to: ryan@aroostook.me.us 

 
 

The County of Aroostook is an Equal Opportunity Em ployer. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
COURTHOUSE, 144 SWEDEN STREET, SUITE 1 , CARIBOU, MAINE 04736 

Tel: (207) 493-3318 Fax: (207) 493-3491 E-mail: 1y an@ar oostoo k.m e.us  Website: www.aroostook.me  .us 

73

mailto:ryan@aroostook.me.us
mailto:1yan@aroostook.me.us
http://www.aroostook.me.us/


74



75



76



 
 
 
 

 
To:   Mayor Smith, Deputy Mayor Ayer and Caribou City Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson 
Date:   July 22, 2021 
Re:   Dangerous Buildings 
 
At the June 28, 2021 meeting, the Caribou City Council asked for an update on 
Dangerous Buildings and here is the latest news: 
 
20 Veronica Street   Map 34 Lot 132  Bill Madore 
Kevin Thibodeau of Thibodeau Trucking & Excavation has been hired and the building 
is down. 
 
827 Main Street  Map 39 Lot 108  City of Caribou 
Kevin Thibodeau of Thibodeau Trucking & Excavation was hired. All work complete. 
 
412 Access Highway  Map 12 Lot 24-C  Jimmy King  
Caldwell’s has removed all vehicles. 
 
864 Main Street  Map 10 Lot 50-75  Barbara Rossignol 
Contracted with Mark’s Towing to remove mobile home. All work complete. 
 
37 Home Farm Road  Map 36 Lot 94-F  Steve Bielinksi 
Repeated attempts to contact have been made. No contact since July 12. Unless the 
Council objects, staff will solicit bids to have the structure removed. All costs of 
removal will be assessed to the owner as allowed under the dangerous building 
statute. 
 

CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE              Phone:   (207) 493-5961 
                 Fax:   (207) 498-3954 

 

   Office of Tax Assessment & Code Enforcement Municipal Building 
25 High Street 

Caribou, Me 04736 

77


